
AGENDA
Committee PUBLIC PROTECTION COMMITTEE

Date and Time 
of Meeting

TUESDAY, 12 APRIL 2016, 10.30 AM

Venue COMMITTEE ROOM 3 - COUNTY HALL

Membership Councillor Parry (Chair)
Councillors Manzoor Ahmed, Boyle, Bridges, Goddard, Hudson, 
Kelloway, Morgan, Murphy, Simmons and Walsh

1  Apologies for Absence  

To receive apologies for absence.

2  Declarations of Interest  

To be made at the commencement of the agenda item in question, in accordance 
with the Members’ Code of Conduct.

3  Minutes  
(Pages 1 - 4)

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the previous meeting.

4  Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Fees and Charges  
(Pages 5 - 60)

David Marr
Interim Monitoring Officer 
Date:  Wednesday, 6 April 2016
Contact:  Graham Porter, 029 2087 3401, g.porter@cardiff.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



PUBLIC PROTECTION COMMITTEE

8 MARCH 2016

Present: County Councillor Parry(Chairperson)
County Councillors Boyle, Bridges, Hudson, Kelloway and 
Murphy

34  Apologies for Absence  

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Ahmed, Goddard, Morgan, 
Simmons and Walsh.

35  Declarations of Interest  

No declarations of interest were received.

36  Minutes  

The minutes of the meetings held on 12 January and 9 February 2016 were approved by 
the Committee as a correct record and were signed by the Chairperson.

37  Prestige Vehicle Application  

RESOLVED – That the application to approve the Volkswagen Jetta as a prestige vehicle 
with a 10-year age restriction be refused.

38  Application for the Approval of the Fitting of Roof Mounted Dual Sided LCD 
Advertising on TX4 Hackney Carriage Vehicles  

The Committee was advised that an application had been received from Eyetease 
Limited for approval to fit roof mounted dual sided LCD advertising screens to TX4 
Hackney Carriage vehicles.  The Eyetease system had been approved for use by 
Transport for London.

Member of the Committee considered the report.  Members felt that the Committee had 
discussed LCD roof mounted advertising at length in the past and had approved it use in 
principal, albeit for a different LCD system.  The Committee considered that the Head of 
Regulatory Services should be granted delegated authority to approve similar 
applications in future.

RESOLVED – That:

(1) The application made by Eyetease Limited in respect of the iTaxitop roof top 
illuminated signs on TX4 Hackney Carriage Vehicles be approved;

(2) The Head of Regulatory Services be authorised on behalf of the City of Cardiff 
Council to approve roof top advertising signs for use on hackney carriage vehicles.

The meeting terminated at 10.45 am

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



PUBLIC PROTECTION SUB COMMITTEE

8 MARCH 2016

Present: County Councillor Parry(Chairperson)
County Councillors Hudson and Murphy

1 :   HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE MATTERS 

RESOLVED – That the following matters be dealt with as indicated:

(1) Application 1

No further action.

(2) Application 2

10 day suspension for the unreasonable refusal of a far.

(3) Application 3

7 day suspension for driving whilst using a mobile for and unprofessional 
conduct.

(4) Application 4

Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Drivers Licence revoked.

(5) Application 5

The licence holder to attend a drivers awareness course within 6 months.

(6) Application 6

No further action

(7) Application 7

Driver to receive a written warning for common assault.

(8) Application 8

Driver to receive a written warning for no providing a valid DBS certificate.

(9) Application 9

Application for a Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Drivers Licence refused.

The meeting terminated at 2.45 pm

Page 3



Page 4



 

 
 

CITY OF CARDIFF COUNCIL     Agenda No. 
CYNGOR DINAS CAERDYDD 
 
PUBLIC PROTECTION COMMITTEE: 12 April 2016  
 
Report of the Head of Shared Regulatory Services 
 
HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENCE FEES  
 
1. Background  
 
1.1 At its meeting of 9th February 2016 the Committee resolved to authorise the 

Head of Shared Regulatory Services to carry out the public notice procedure in 
respect of proposed changes to the hackney carriage/private hire fees and 
charges. 
 

1.2 In response to the public notice, objections to the proposed changes have been 
received from members of the Trade (detailed in Appendix A).  The 
Committee must now consider those objections and decide whether or not it 
wishes to implement, modify or withdraw the proposed fees and charges.  The 
Committee must also revise the date for any proposed new fees to come into 
force. 

 
2. Proposed Fees. 
 
2.1  The table below shows the existing fees compared with the proposed new 

fees. 
 

 Existing Fee Proposed Fee 
Hackney Carriage 12 month renewal £163 £154 
Hackney Carriage 6 month renewal £104 £86 
Private Hire 12 Month Grant £140 £103 
Private Hire 12 Month Renewal £102 £85 
Private Hire 6 Month Grant £98 £69 
Private Hire 6 Month Renewal £69 £51 

 
2.2 The proposed fees were advertised in the South Wales Echo on 18th February 

2016 and the consultation ran for 28 days. During the consultation period, 2 
objections to the proposed fees were received.  

 
3. Details of objections 
 
3.1 The main focus of the objections (detailed in Appendix A) seems to be the 

following: 
 1) The validity of the fees and use of the fees toolkit 
 2) The legality and cost of 6 month vehicle licences 
 3) The perceived lack of detail regarding the calculations 

 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 

 
 

  
 
3.2 Objection point 1: The validity of the fees & use of the fees toolkit 

The proposed fees have been calculated using a toolkit developed by the 
Wales Licensing Expert Panel. The toolkit is being used by all other Welsh 
local authorities.  
An explanation of the method used to calculate the fees is attached in 
Appendix B of this report and accompanied the initial report in February 2016.  

 
3.3  Objection point 2: The legality and cost of 6 month vehicle licences 

The objections query the cost of a 6 month licence compared to a 12 month 
vehicle licence. The administration process of issuing a vehicle licence is 
exactly the same regardless of whether it is a 6 month licence or 12 month 
licence, and therefore the cost of the administrative process is exactly the same 
for both. However, for a 6 month licence, the additional costs such as 
enforcement, compliance etc.  will be half that of a 12 month licence. With 
these 2 elements combined it is correct that a 6 month licence will cost more 
per month than a 12 month licence. 
For example, if the cost of the process is £10, and the cost of the other taxi 
related costs (enforcement etc) is £20: 
12 month licence: £10 +£20=£30 
   Per month £30/12=£2.50 
6 month licence:  £10+(£20/2)= £20 
   Per month £20/6 = £3.33 
 
 
With regards to the validity of a 6 month vehicle licence, the objector refers to 
section 43 of the Town Police Clauses Act 1847 which states that licences to 
be in force for one year only.  
This has was amended by the Town Police Clauses Act 1889 which states that 
licences granted under the principal Act may be in force a lesser period than 
one year. It is therefore legal to grant 6 month licences in respect of hackney 
carriage and private hire vehicles.  
 

 
3.4   Objection point  3: Lack of detail concerning the fee calculations 

As stated above, an explanation of the fee calculations is detailed in Appendix 
B. These document shows the proposed expenditure for the new fees and 
apportion costs based on application numbers for 2014/15.  
Since the fees were last set, the structure of the Licensing Section has not 
changed and the same level of detail regarding the fee calculations has been 
provided, albeit in a different format. 
 

 
3. Legal Implications 
 
3.1 Section 70 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 

allows the Council to charge fees for the grant of licences in respect of 
hackney carriage and private hire vehicles.  The Council must set the fees for 

Page 6



 

 
 

these licences on the basis that it only recovers costs which it is entitled 
statutorily to recover. 

 
 In respect of vehicle licences the Act states that the Council may charge such 

fees as may be sufficient in the aggregate to cover in whole or in part: 
 

• The reasonable cost of inspecting Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
vehicles to ascertain whether any such licence should be granted or 
renewed. 

 
• The reasonable cost of providing Hackney Carriage stands. 

 
• Any reasonable administrative or other costs in connection with the above 

and with the control and supervision of Hackney Carriages and Private 
Hire vehicles. 

 
  
3.2 The Act, which dates from 1976, also states that the fee for vehicle licences 

shall not exceed £25 or such other sum as the Council may from time to time 
determine. In the light of current costs, £25 is not seen as a realistic fee. 
 

3.3 Case law has established that when the Council makes a surplus in respect of 
licence fees it should give account for that the next time that the fees are set; 
and if it makes a deficit it may also take that into account. The calculations in 
respect of each type of licence issued by the Council should be kept separate. 
 

3.4 When the Council proposes to set new fees for vehicle licences it is required 
by Section 70 of the 1976 Act to publish notice of the proposed variation in a 
local newspaper stating that objections may be made within a period of not 
less than 28 days. If objections are received and not withdrawn the Council 
must consider them and set a further date on which the variation shall come 
into force with or without modifications. It is suggested that a suitable date 
would be 1st May 2016. 

 
 
4. Financial Implications 
 
4.1 The proposed fees are set at a level which fully funds the costs of each type of 

licence insofar as permissible by statute as highlighted in the above legal 
implications. Therefore, any amendments suggested in respect of the fee 
charged or the date from which changes will be applicable need to consider the 
impact on being able to recover the costs of each type of licence.  

 
5. Recommendations 
 
5.1 It is recommended the Committee consider the objections and decide whether 

to implement the proposed fees and charges, make modifications or withdraw 
the proposed fees. 

 

Page 7



 

 
 

5.2 To set a suitable implementation date on which the proposed fees and charges 
will come into effect. 

 
5.3 Whatever the Committee resolves, the reasons for that resolution must be 

determined. 
 

 
 

 
Dave Holland 
Head of Shared Regulatory Services                                              18 March 2016 
 
Background papers: Financial calculations 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



 

 
 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



 
 
         Appendix B 
 
 
Calculation Method: 
 
The Hackney Carriage and Private Hire vehicle licence fees are calculated 
using a toolkit produced by the Wales Licensing Expert Panel. The purpose of 
the toolkit is to provide a consistent and robust mechanism to setting licensing 
fees. The toolkit is utilised by many other local authorities. 
 
Part 1 –Cost Summary 
 
All general expenditure across the Licensing Section (based on 2014/15 
figures) is documented and applied to each post to give an hourly rate of each 
member of staff. 
 
Licensing Section General Expenditure: 
 
Support Services     £86,990 
     
Accommodation Costs    £46,000 
 
Capital Financing     £2,950 
 
Employee Related (Excl salary)   £13,721 
 
Transport      £2,733 
 
Supplies & Services     £66,199 
   
The total general expenditure (£204,872) is divided amongst each member of 
staff (14 in total) to give an hourly rate. 
 
Licensing Support Assistant (x3)  £32.00 
Licensing Assistant (x2)   £32.00 
Licensing Enforcement Officer (x6) £44.50 
Senior Enforcement Officer   £48.00 
Senior Technical Officer   £48.00 
Team Manager    £53.50 
 
These figures have been rounded to the nearest 0.50 

 
Part 2 – Application Costs 
 
Officer time spent on tasks relating to the licence type are calculated in 
minutes such as dealing with enquiries, general admin, meetings, project work 
training, complaint investigation, compliance and enforcement.  
 

Page 57



In respect of hackney carriage vehicle licences, the total costs for additional 
officer time are £144,613. 
 
In respect of Private Hire vehicle licences the additional costs for officer time 
are £95,150. 
 
Any other licence specific costs are also applied. For example, in the case of 
vehicles, the cost of advertising the fees in the paper is applied. 
 
General taxi expenditure is £30726 and comprises of: 
 
Taxi office rent £7,000 
Equipment  £791 
Materials/Stationery £4602 
Bank charges £725 
Phone   £1098 
ICT   £13046 
Internet  £191 
Security  £3273 
 
The general taxi expenditure is then apportioned across the licence costs: 
£8603 is apportioned to hackney carriage vehicle licences, and £10,139 to 
private hire vehicle licences.  
 
The cost of undertaking additional applications such as vehicle transfers, 
change of vehicles, and replacement plates is also calculated and added to 
the specific costs. These additional and specific costs are £32,732 for 
hackney carriage vehicle licences and £19,083 for private hire vehicle 
licences 
 
The costs set out above are divided by the total number of relevant 
applications for 12 month licences to give a cost of £140 for Hackney Carriage 
vehicle licences and £70 for Private Hire vehicle licences, per application.  
 
The officer time and specific costs for 6 month licences are halved, giving a 
cost of £70 for hackney carriages and £32 for private hire vehicles, per 
application. 
 
 
 
N.B. (1) there has been an increase of nearly 200 private hire vehic le licence application since the last time the fees were set, which 

has reduced the total charges for each licence (as the costs a re divided by more applications) 

(2) In 2014/15, it has been calculated that there was a £9,961 surplu s in terms of hackney carriage licence, and surplus of £12,798 in 

respect of private hire vehicle licences. The Council will take accoun t of these surpluses in full in the new fees;  

(3) In reference to expenditure the term ‘taxi’ refers to both  hackney carriage and private hire vehicles 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 58



 

 

Part 3 Process steps 
 
The cost of the administration of the licence (based on the hourly rates 
calculated in Part 1) and are added to the application costs outlined in part 2 
above resulting in the following fees:  
 
Cost of 1 year hackney carriage vehicle licence ren ewal:   
£154 
 
Cost of 6 month hackney carriage vehicle licence re newal:  
£86 
 
Cost of 1 year private hire vehicle licence Grant:  
£103 
 
Cost of 1 year private hire vehicle licence Renewal : 
£85 
 
Cost of 6 month private hire vehicle licence Grant:   
£69 
 
Cost of 6 month private hire vehicle licence Renewa l: 
£51 
 
 
 

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 08/03/2016 Public Protection Sub Committee
	Minutes


	4 Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Fees and Charges
	Fees Appendix A
	Fees Appendix B


